IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

DESERT VALLEY CONTRACTING, INC. a Nevada corporation,

Appellant,

VS.

IN-LO PROPERTIES, a Nevada limited liability company; EUGENE INOSE, an individual; JEFFREY LOUIE, an individual; DOES 1 through 10; and ROE ENTITIES 1 through 10,

Respondents,

CASE NO. 83338

Electronically Filed Jan 10 2022 02:33 p.m. Elizabeth A. Brown Clerk of Supreme Court

APPEAL

From the Eight Judicial District Court, Department XV
The Honorable Joe Hardy, District Judge
District Court Case No. A-16-734351-C

APPELLANTS' OPENING BRIEF

CARRIE E. HURTIK, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 7028
JONATHON R. PATTERSON
Nevada Bar No. 9644
HURTIK LAW AND ASSOCIATES

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

This Court has jurisdiction under NRAP 3A(b)(1) because the district court entered judgment on all claims against Appellant following a Bench Trial held on April 8, 9, 10, & 11, 2019, June 19, 20 & 21, 2019, and July 24, 2019. A Notice of Entry of Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law was entered on September 4, 2019. Appellant filed a timely notice of appeal on September 30, 2021. After Reversal and Remand, a Notice of Entry Amended Findings of Fact and Conclusion of Law Following Remand was filed on July 6, 2021. Appellant filed a timely notice of appeal on August 5, 2021. see NRAP 4(a)(6).

STATEMENT OF ISSUES PRESENTED

- A. Whether the District Court abused its Discretion when it found that DVC's Breached the Contract First.
- B. Whether the District Court was in error when it ruled that DVC failed to meet its burden prove their damages as a result of INOSE's Breach of Contract.
- C. Whether the District Court was in error regarding their Conclusions of Law related to DVC had breaching their Contract with INOSE.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This matter involves contract interpretation, breach of contract, and damages. The Respondent, EUGENE INOSE and IN-LO PROPERTIES (hereinafter collectively known as "INOSE") built a custom residential home located at 587 Saint Croix Street, Henderson, Nevada 89012 (APN: 178-27-114-001) (hereinafter "Subject Property").

In early August 2014, the Subject Property sustained substantial water damage due to a burst pipe. Appellant DVC preformed the reconstruction of the property. This matter involves contract interpretation, breach of contract, and damages that stem from the work performed by DVC. On March 31, 2016, DVC filed a Complaint alleging, Breach of Contract, Breach of Covenant of Good Faith and Fair Dealing, Unjust Enrichment, and Intentional Interference with Contract (Appendix, Volume I, Exhibit 1, JNT000001-JNT000019). On June 7, INOSE filed an Answer and Counter-Claim alleging Breach of Contract, Breach of Covenant of Good Faith and Fair Dealing, Unjust Enrichment, and Intentional Interference with Prospective Economic Advantage (Appendix, Volume I, Exhibit 2, JNT000020-JNT000047). On July 8, 2016, DVC filed its Answer to INOSE'S Counterclaim (Appendix, Volume I, Exhibit 3, JNT000048-JNT000019). On August 8, 2016, Defendant IN-LO PROPERTIES filed an Answer to DVC's Complaint. (Appendix, Volume I, Exhibit 4, JNT000066-JNT000084).

A Bench Trial held on April 8, 9, 10, and 11, 2019, June 19, 20 and 21, 2019, and July 24, 2019. On July 24, 2019, the Court rendered its verdict wherein the Court did not award damages to either party. The Notice of Entry of Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law was filed on September 4, 2019. DVC filed a timely Notice of Appeal on September 30, 2019. INOSE had previously sent DVC an Offer of Judgment in the amount of Fifty Thousand Dollars and Zero Cents (\$50,000.00). Therefore, on November 18, 2019, the Court Granted INOSE's Motion for Attorney's Fees and Costs based on the Courts award of no damages.

On March 3, 2021, the Court entered its Order of Reversal and Remand. In the Remand Order the Court held that the District Court erred when it construed a scrivener's error in the Construction Agreement entered into by the parties as an ambiguity and thus construed the provision against the drafter, Appellant Desert Valley. The Court stated that because they could not determine if the error was harmless, they reversed and remanded for further proceedings. The Court neither affirmed nor denied any of the other issues raised by Desert Valley Contracting in their initial appeal.

Upon remand, the District Court ordered further briefing and oral arguments on June 2, 2021. The District Court found that both parties committed material breaches, however found that that Desert Valley Contracting committed the first material breach of the construction agreement when it stopped work on Defendant's

construction project. The District Court further stated that even with the reformation of the Construction Agreement the both parties failed to present sufficient evidence proving their damages. On September 15, 2021, the District Court awarded additional attorney's fees to the Respondent as a result of the Appellant beating the Respondent's Offer of Judgment.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

On or about 2006, INOSE began building the subject property through various subcontractors (Appendix, Volume I, Exhibit 5, Trial Testimony Day One, Page 7-10, JNT000091-JNT000094). In early August 2014, the Subject Property sustained substantial water damage due to a burst pipe. At the time, INOSE did not reside at the Subject Property, so the leak remained undetected for an unknown amount of time. Once the leak and damage were detected, an agent of INOSE contacted ServPro of Henderson, to begin the clean-up of the extensive water damage. (Appendix, Volume I, Exhibit 5, Trial Testimony Day One, Page 10-12, JNT000091-JNT000097). ServPro of Henderson is not a party to the litigation. ServPro of Henderson is a separate entity that is not affiliated with DVC (Appendix Volume V, Trial Testimony Day Five, Page 48, line 16-18, JNT000708). ServPro of Henderson conducted the initial demolition of the water damaged property. The Court heard testimony that ServPro of Henderson damaged and misplaced items during the initial demolition. (Appendix, Volume V, Exhibit 9, Trial Testimony Day

Five, Page 48, Lines 13-21, JNT000708). The Court heard testimony that ServPro of Henderson damaged driveway concrete with its equipment. (Appendix, Volume V, Exhibit 9, Trial Testimony Day Five, Page 83, JNT000743). Notwithstanding INOSE's failure to distinguish between the two companies, no testimony has been put forward that showed that DVC damaged or misplaced items.

Thereafter, ServPro of Henderson referred INOSE to DVC. After DVC and INOSE made contact, Mr. Inose and DVC's Employee Daniel Merritt met at the property and discussed the restoration of the property. (Appendix, Volume V, Exhibit 9, Trial Testimony Day Five, Page 104, JNT000764). Thereafter, on August 24, 2014, DVC, and INOSE, entered into a Contract wherein DVC would complete perform and rebuild of the Subject Property. The Contract stated specifically that;

"The undersigned hereby transfers, assigns and convey to Contractor his/her/their right...to the insurance proceeds...The undersigned agrees to immediately endorse and tender all drafts as produced to the Contractor. The undersigned further agrees to authorize Desert Valley Contracting Inc. to sign on their behalf and/or deposit all insurance checks that are issued to pay for the services performed pursuant to the contract".

(Appendix, Volume VII, Exhibit 12, JNT001137-JNT001138).

INOSE never endorsed or tendered the drafts he received from his insurance company, FIREMANS FUND, to DVC as required by the Contract. INOSE also never allowed DVC to sign on INOSE's behalf or deposit the insurance checks themselves (Appendix, Volume V, Exhibit 9, page 106, Lines 12-17, JNT000767).

INOSE never relinquished control of the purse strings for this project. The documents show that INOSE doled out payments to DVC over the course of a year, from September 2014 to September 2015. (Appendix, Volume VII, Exhibit 13, JNT001153-1155,1156)

The Contract contemplates that work may be performed outside the scope of the Insurance Claim. The Contract states that all uninsured work, including uninsured code-upgrade work, or any form of work not covered under Owner's Insurance Policy would be the responsibility of INOSE as signatory of the contract.

The Undersigned also agrees to and understands the General Conditions stated below. Contractor agrees to perform the insured work as approved by the Insurance Company and accept insurance proceeds, as payment for the uninsured work. Any uninsured work, which includes, but is not limited to, code-upgrade work, asbestos removal or any other form of work not covered under Owner's insurance policy shall be paid by insurance. (Appendix, Volume VII, Exhibit 12, JNT001138).

The contract also states in multiple places that if the contractor is forced to bring suit the prevailing party would be entitled to attorney's fees and the legal interest rate of Prime Plus Two (2) points. The contract further states that requests for additional work must be in writing so that they can be added to the Scope of Work. The contract does not state that these change orders need to be signed by DVC to be added to the Scope of Work. (Appendix, Volume VII, Exhibit 12, JNT001138).

In September of 2014, DVC began reconstruction of the Subject Property.

During the demolition and reconstruction of the house, revised budgets were

presented to INOSE'S insurance company, FIREMAN'S FUND (Appendix, Volume VII, Exhibit 14, page 4, and 7, JNT001164, 1167). During the performance of the Contract, INOSE chose to have several upgrades in materials and work added onto the Contract's scope of work, which increased the original Contract's scope of work and cost. The Court heard testimony regarding the upgraded wine room, the upgrades to the pool area, and Master Bathroom (Appendix, Volume VI, Exhibit 10, Trial Testimony Day 6, pages 48-51, JNT000891-JNT000894). Additionally, other uncontrollable delays bedeviled the reconstruction. Italian Marble had to be imported from Tuscany and was not available for Three (3) months while it was held up in customs due to a dock workers labor dispute. (Appendix, Volume VI, Exhibit 9, Trial Testimony Day 5, Page 181, lines 23-25, JNT000841).

Mr. Inose received constant updates from Rob Ramirez regarding the project. (Appendix, Volume VII, Exhibit 6, page 76, lines 5-9, JNT000284). INOSE also spoke with the Sub-Contractors directly (Appendix Volume VII, Exhibit 14, page 14, JNT001174). The court found that INOSE was aware of the Change Orders for the project as well (Appendix, Volume VII, Exhibit 14, page 6, JNT001166). Against the advice of DVC, INOSE closed out the claim following the production of this estimate and prior to the project being completed. (Appendix, Volume VII, Exhibit 14, page 7, JNT001167). Then, in October 2015, DVC could no longer abide by INOSE's demands for the upgrades and changes that were exceeding the

insurance proceeds that were designated for reconstruction, not remodeling and updating the property. (Appendix, Volume VII, Exhibit 12, JNT001137-JNT001138).

On December 7, 2015 INOSE sent DVC correspondence terminating its contract. (Appendix, Volume VI, Exhibit 10, Trial Testimony, Page 144 Lines 14-20 JNT000987). The Contract states that should the Client (INOSE) terminate the Contractor (DVC) after the work has begun, INOSE is responsible for any fees and costs plus the profit DVC would have made had INOSE not repudiated the Contract. (Appendix, Volume VII, Exhibit 12, JNT001137-JNT001138). To date, INOSE has not paid that amount and DVC filed this action on March 31, 2016.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENTS

- A. DVC had a contractual right to withdraw from the worksite if the Respondent withheld insurance proceeds. There is undisputed evidence that Inose withheld payment. Therefore, the District Court is in error by stating that
- B. DVC proved damages of, at least, Eighty-Nine Thousand, One Hundred Ninety-Seven Dollars and Fifty-Eight cents (\$89,197.58). DVC has costs in the amount of One Hundred, Twelve Thousand, Four Hundred, Fifty-One Dollars and Eight Cents (\$1,012,451.08). DVC provided unrefuted testimony that the standard for the construction industry is a Twenty (20%) profit. The Twenty (20%) profit would be an additional Two Hundred, Two Thousand, Four Hundred Ninety Dollars

and Twenty-One Cents (\$202,490.21). Therefore, DVC is entitled to a total of One Million, Two Hundred Fourteen Thousand, Nine Hundred Forty-One Dollars and Thirty Cents (\$1,214,941.30) from INOSE at the time INOSE repudiated the Contract. DVC was paid at total of One Million, One Hundred, Twenty-Five Thousand, Seven Hundred Forty-Three Dollars and Seventy-Two Cents, (\$1,125,734.89) from INOSE. Therefore, there is an Eighty-Nine Thousand, One Hundred Ninety-Seven Dollars and Fifty-Eight cents (\$89,197.58) deficient between the amount DVC was paid and the amount they are due under the contract.

C. The Conclusions of Law adopted by the Court under INOSE'S Breach of Contract action are inconsistent with the facts and evidence presented and must be overruled. INOSE cannot show damages by DVC to the subject property by what may have been done versus other parties. Furthermore, INOSE limited the Insurance proceeds available to himself and DVC by closing out the insurance claim prematurely, against the wishes of DVC. The Court found that INOSE was aware of change orders, but then finds DVC in breach for not getting approval from INOSE for those change orders. The Court finds that INOSE had control over the Insurance proceeds, in violation of the Contract, but the Court inexplicably holds DVC responsible for not paying the Sub-contractors timely. INOSE terminated DVC from the project and then the court curiously finds DVC in breach for not completing the project. These Conclusions of Law are clearly in error and should be reversed.

I. THE DISTRICT COURT WAS IN ERROR WHEN IT RULED THAT THE APPELLANT BREACHED THE CONTRACT FIRST BY TELLING SUBCONTRACTORS QUIT WORK ON THE PROJECT.

A. Standard Of Review

The standard for reviewing a district court's factual findings is an abuse of discretion. Those findings will not be set aside unless they are clearly erroneous or not supported by substantial evidence *Weddell v. H20*, Inc., 128 Nev. 94, 101, 271 P.3d 743, 748 (2012). Appellant contends that this issue should be heard de Novo as a matter of contract interpretation. In Nevada, "[c]ontract interpretation is a question of law and, as long as no facts are in dispute, this court reviews contract issues de novo, looking to the language of the agreement and the surrounding circumstances." *Redrock Valley Ranch, LLC v. Washoe Cnty.*, 127 Nev. 451, 127 Nev. Adv. Rep. 38, 254 P.3d 641, 647-48 (2011). In this matter the District Court found that DVC breached the Contract Agreement first. (Appendix Volume VII-Exhibit 18, Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, Page 4, JNT001214)

B. RESPONDENT INOSE CLEARLY BREACHED THE AGREEMENT FIRST BY FAILING TO TURN OVER INSURANCE PROCEEDS

Pursuant to the Contract between the parties the Respondent was responsible for turning over the insurance proceeds over to DVC immediately upon receipt. Appendix Volume VII-Exhibit 12, Page 11, JNT001137-1138).

"The undersigned hereby transfers, assigns and convey to Contractor his/her/their right...to the insurance proceeds...The undersigned agrees to immediately endorse

and tender all drafts as produced to the Contractor. The undersigned further agrees to authorize Desert Valley Contracting Inc. to sign on their behalf and/or deposit all insurance checks that are issued to pay for the services performed pursuant to the contract".

(Appendix, Volume VII, Exhibit 12, JNT001137-JNT001138).

The Contract directed the Respondent to turn over Insurance Proceeds he received from his insurance company Fireman's Fund as the received them. During Construction, the Respondent turned over the checks piecemeal (see below Testimony). Mr. INOSE did not present any counter testimony that he was not holding onto insurance proceeds in violation of the contract. The Court itself found INOSE in Breach of Contract by failing to forward insurance proceeds as and when received to DVC (Appendix Volume VII, Exhibit 14, page 14, JNT001174). During testimony, Mr. Daniel Merritt, who is an employee of DVC, read the following portion of the Contract regarding insurance drafts:

Accordingly, undersigned authorize and directs their insured named below to make Desert Valley Contracting a payee to all insurance drafts, for all insurance and work performed by contractor on the above damaged property.

The undersigned also agrees to immediately endorse and tender all drafts that produced to the contractor. The undersigned further agrees to authorized Desert Valley Contracting to sign on their behalf and deposit all insurance checks that are issued, and to pay for the services performed, pursuant to the contract.

Q. So to your knowledge, did Mr. Inose sign over the insurance checks to Desert Valley Contracting, after he entered into the contract with them?

A. When certain tasks were finished at the job, or certain contractors, subcontractors needed payment, I believe that's -- that's when they were signed over.

(Appendix Volume VI, Trial Testimony, Page 106, Line 3-18, JNT000766)

The Contract further states that, "If in the event insurance proceeds are not issued, Contractor has the right to stop work until such time the insurance proceeds are released (Appendix Volume VII, Exhibit 12, JNT001138). In Nevada, "[c]ontract interpretation is a question of law and, as long as no facts are in dispute, this court reviews contract issues de novo, looking to the language of the agreement and the surrounding circumstances." Redrock Valley Ranch, LLC v. Washoe Cnty., 127 Nev. 451, 127 Nev. Adv. Rep. 38, 254 P.3d 641, 647-48 (2011). The objective of interpreting contracts "is to discern the intent of the contracting parties. Traditional rules of contract interpretation are employed to accomplish that result." Davis v. Beling, 128 Nev. 301, 128 Nev. Adv. Rep. 28, 278 P.3d 501, 515 (2012) (citation and internal quotation marks omitted). This court initially determines whether the "language of the contract is clear and unambiguous; if it is, the contract will be enforced as written." Am. First Fed. Credit Union v. Soro, 131 Nev. 737, at 739, 359 P.3d 105 (2015).

In this matter, DVC had a clear and unambiguous contractual right to stop work in the event that insurance proceeds were withheld, as they were in this case.

By the plain language of the contract, DVC had a clear right to stop work on the project if insurance proceeds were being withheld, and they were. The President of DVC, testified that the Respondent had stopped turning over the insurance proceeds. (Appendix Volume VII-JNT001092) By stopping work, DVC executed it's bargained for right under the agreement. It is clearly contrary to Nevada contract interpretation to determine that by stopping work, DVC breached the Contract and therefore are not entitled to damages. DVC cannot be in breach for the reasons stated in this Conclusion of Law and the Court ruling must be overruled.

The District Court's finding that DVC breached the agreement first by stopping work on the project or advising its subcontractors to stop working is clearly erroneous. As such, DVC cannot be in breach for the reasons stated in this Conclusion of Law or the Amended Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law Following Remand and the District Court must be reversed.

II. THE DISTRICT COURT WAS IN ERROR WHEN IT RULED THAT THE APPELLANT DID NOT PROVE ITS DAMAGES BY A PREPONDERENCE OF THE EVIDENCE

A. Standard Of Review

A District Court's conclusions of law are reviewed de novo. White v. Cont'l Ins. Co., 119 Nev. 114, 116, 65 P.3d 1090, 1091 (2003). A district court's decision regarding the calculation of an award of damages will not be disturbed on appeal absent an abuse of discretion. Gadbois v. Marathon Racing, Inc., No. 60167, 2013

WL 7156050, at *2 (Nev. Dec. 18, 2013) (quoting *Diamond Enterprises, Inc. v. Lau*, 113 Nev. 1376, 1379, 951 P.2d 73, 74 (1997). This issue should be heard de novo because the issue at questions stems from the Court's Conclusion of Law regarding DVC's alleged failure to show by a preponderance of evidence they were damaged by the breach and not an actual damage calculation. (Appendix Volume VII-Exhibit 14, Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, Page 11, JNT001172). In the District Court's Initial Conclusions of Law and Amended Filed on September 15, 2021, the Court re-affirmed their ruling that DVC had failed to prove it's damages by a preponderance of the evidence.

B. DVC Provided Clear Testimony Regarding Its Damages.

In this matter, the Parties' Contract states that if the Client terminates the contract before the work is completed, they shall be responsible for the profit the Contractor would have been made had the contract not been repudiated. INOSE provided testimony that he terminated DVC on or around December 8, 2015. (Appendix, Volume VII, Exhibit 14, Page 9, JNT001169).

Pursuant to Exhibit 274, the Job and Billing Detail, DVC's cost for the project was One Hundred, Twelve Thousand, Four Hundred, Fifty-One Dollars and Eight Cents (\$1,012,451.08). (Appendix VII, Exhibit 13, JNT0001160). That means that at the time they were terminated DVC has spent One Hundred, Twelve Thousand, Four Hundred, Fifty-One Dollars and Eight Cents (\$1,012,451.08) on the project

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