IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

DESERT VALLEY CONTRACTING, INC., a Nevada corporation,

Appellant,

VS.

IN-LO PROPERTIES, a Nevada limited liability company; EUGENE INOSE, an individual; JEFFREY LOUIE, an individual; DOES 1 through 10; and ROE ENTITIES 1 through 10,

Respondents.

Case No.: 83338

Electronically Filed District Court No. AFeb 2343922 09:38 a.m. Elizabeth A. Brown Clerk of Supreme Court

APPEAL

From the Eighth Judicial District Court, The Honorable Joe Hardy Presiding

RESPONDENT'S ANSWERING BRIEF APPENDIX Volume I

BRIAN W. BOSCHEE, ESQ. Nevada Bar No. 7612 bboschee@nevadafirm.com JESSICA M. LUJAN, ESQ. Nevada Bar No. 14913 ilujan@nevadafirm.com

HOLLEY DRIGGS

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

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENTS

A. The District Court abused their discretion when they ruled that the Contract between DVC and INOSE was ambiguous because of a scrivener's error. The party's clear intent was that DVC was the Contractor in the Contract and INOSE was the Client.

The contract is referring to the liability the Client would incur if they repudiated the contract. INOSE testified himself that is his understanding of the contract. The Contract then refers to fees and costs the Client would incur if the Client repudiated the Contract. Immediately following the is the error appears stating that the Client is entitled to the Profit they would have received had Client not repudiated the contract. Nevada recognizes Scrivener's Error, the insertion of Client in this portion of the Contract is clearly an error. Any interpretation that paints INOSE as the one who was entitled to the profit if he repudiates the contract is an unreasonable and nonsensical interpretation.

B. DVC proved damages of, at least, Eighty-Nine Thousand, One Hundred Ninety-Seven Dollars and Fifty Eight cents (\$89,197.58). DVC has costs in the amount of One Hundred, Twelve Thousand, Four Hundred, Fifty-One Dollars and Eight Cents (\$1,012,451.08). DVC provided unrefuted testimony that the standard for the construction industry is a Twenty (20%) profit. The Twenty (20%) profit would be an additional Two Hundred, Two Thousand, Four Hundred Ninety Dollars and Twenty One Cents (\$202,490.21). Therefore, DVC is entitled to a total of One Million, Two Hundred Fourteen Thousand, Nine Hundred Forty-One Dollars and Thirty Cents (\$1,214,941.30) from INOSE at the time INOSE repudiated the Contract. DVC was paid at total of One Million, One Hundred, Twenty-Five Thousand, Seven Hundred Forty-Three Dollars and Seventy-Two Cents,

(\$1,125,734.89) from INOSE. Therefore, there is a Eighty-Nine Thousand, One Hundred Ninety-Seven Dollars and Fifty-Eight cents (\$89,197.58) deficient between the amount DVC was paid and the amount they are due under the contract.

C. The Conclusions of Law adopted by the Court under INOSE'S Breach of Contract action are inconsistent with the facts and evidence presented and must be overruled. INOSE cannot show damages by DVC to the subject property by what may have been done versus other parties. Furthermore, INOSE limited the Insurance proceeds available to himself and DVC by closing out the insurance claim prematurely, against the wishes of DVC. The Court found that INOSE was aware of change orders, but then alleges DVC did not get approval from INOSE. INOSE also had control over the Insurance proceeds, in violation of the Contract, but the Court inexplicably holds DVC responsible for not paying the Sub-contractors timely. INOSE terminated DVC from the project and then the court curiously finds DVC in breach for not completing the project. These Conclusions of Law are clearly in error and should be reversed.

ARGUMENT

I. THE DISTRICT COURT ABUSED ITS DISCRETION WHEN IT RULED THAT THE APPELLANT'S CONTRACT WAS AMBIGUOUS

A. Standard Of Review

"An abuse of discretion is a plain error, discretion exercised to an end not justified by the evidence, a judgment that is clearly against the logic and effect of the facts as are found." Rabkin v. Oregon Health Sciences Univ., 350 F.3d 967, 977 (9th Cir. 2003) (citation and internal quotation marks omitted); In re Korean Air Lines Co., Ltd., 642 F.3d 685, 698 n.11 (9th Cir. 2011). When a district court "exercises its discretion in clear disregard of the guiding legal principles, this action may constitute an abuse of discretion." Cole-Monahan v. Salvo, No. 62849, 2014 WL 5686290, at *1 (Nev. Nov. 3, 2014). Furthermore, "a court may not award attorney's fees unless authorized by statute, rule or contract." State, Dep't of Human Res. v. Fowler, 109 Nev. 782, 784, 858 P.2d 375, 376 (1993). A court abuses its discretion when it does not apply the correct law or rests its decision on a clearly erroneous finding of a material fact. Jeff D. v. Otter, 643 f.3d 278 (9th Cir. 2011) (citing 362 F.3d 1254, 1257 (9th Cir. 2004)). When determining if the district court abused its discretion, this court examines whether the decision was supported by substantial evidence and guided by applicable legal principles. Kwist v. Chang, 127 Nev. 1152, 373 P.3d 933 (2011); Franklin v. Bartsas Realty, Inc., 95 Nev. 559, 562-63, 598 P.2d 1147, 1149 (1979).

B. The Parties Entered Into A Valid Contract

There is no dispute that Desert Valley Contracting, LLC and Eugene Inose entered into a valid agreement on August 24, 2014. (See Appendix Volume VII, Exhibit 12, Trial Exhibit 560, JNT001137-JNT001138). The contract States that,

"Should client terminate the Contractors after work has begun, but not completed in full, the Client shall be responsible for any and all fees and costs associated with the work performed, plus the profit the client would have made on the job had Client not repudiated the contract." The Court found that a valid contract existed between the parties.

(Appendix, Volume VII, Exhibit 14, Finding of Fact and Conclusions of Law, Page 11, JNT001173)

C. Intent of the Parties Was Clear by Their Actions and Any Interpretation That Respondent is the "Client" is and Abuse of Discretion.

The Doctrine of Scrivener's Error is well established Nevada Law. "It is undisputed that our courts will reform contracts and deeds in accordance with the true intention of the parties thereto, when their intention has been frustrated by a mistake." Ruhling v. Hackett, 1 Nev. 360; Holman v. Vieira, 53 Nev. 337, 300 P. 946. The Doctrine of Scrivener's error is a legal principle which permits a typographical error in a written contract to be corrected by parol evidence if the evidence is clear, convincing, and precise. The contract law doctrine of scrivener's error or mutual mistake allows a court of equity to reform a contract if a written agreement does not reflect the clear intent of the parties due to a drafting error. 27 RICHARD A. LORD, WILLISTON ON CONTRACTS § 70:93 (4th ed.)

In this matter, the August 24, 2014 contract created between DVC and INOSE contained an error. The document states that in the event the Client repudiated the contract after work has begun on the project that, "the Client shall be responsible for any and all fees and costs associated with the work performed, plus the profit that the <u>Client</u> (italics added)would have made on the job had Client not repudiated the

contract." Here, clearly the document should state that, "the Client shall be responsible for any and all fees and costs associated with the work performed, plus the profit the Contractor would have made on the job had Client not repudiated the contract." Clients and/or homeowners do not make a profit *from the Contractor* for a restoration of the Client's property of their property. The only sensible was to interpret that provision is that it is an error and that the word Contractor should be substituted for client were indicated above.

INOSE testified at trial that he understood the meaning of the provision. The trial testimony of INOSE is as follows;

- Q. ...So it is your understanding that if you terminated them you would have been still responsible for any profit that they would have earned if you had not terminated them?
- A. Yes. How I read it now, yes. And as long as the work was in good workman like manner and condition.

(Appendix Volume VII, Exhibit 5, Trial Testimony-Day One, Page 29, Line 5-9, JNT000113).

An interpretation which results in a fair and reasonable contract is preferable to one that results in a harsh and unreasonable contract. *Sterling v. Goodman*, 102 Nev. 218, 220, 719 P.2d 1262, 1263 (1986). When the provision is read as a whole and the conduct of the parties examined, it is blatantly clear that the term client should have been Contractor when referring to the profit to be made off the contract.

INOSE IN-LO PROPERTIES AND RESPONDENT COUNTER
CLAIMANT EUGENE INOSE'S FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS

OF LAW (Appendix-Volume VII, Exhibit 14, page 18 JNT001179) indicate that because of the ambiguity in the contract, DVC failed to establish that is entitled to recovery any profit or overhead for amounts paid to subcontractors by INOSE for work completed after DVC left the Project. The findings under the DAMAGES heading are not particularly clear. They seem to indicate that the reason the ruling is that DVC did not prove its damages by a preponderance of the evidence is because of the error in the Contract. To the extent the Court made its decision based upon the typo on the Contract, the Court abused their discretion and should be overturned.

II. THE DISTRICT COURT WAS IN ERROR WHEN IT RULED THAT THE APPELLANT DID NOT PROVE ITS DAMAGES BY A PREPONDERENCE OF THE EVIDENCE

A. Standard Of Review

A District Court's conclusions of law are reviewed de novo. White v. Cont'l Ins. Co., 119 Nev. 114, 116, 65 P.3d 1090, 1091 (2003). A district court's decision regarding the calculation of an award of damages will not be disturbed on appeal absent an abuse of discretion. Gadbois v. Marathon Racing, Inc., No. 60167, 2013 WL 7156050, at *2 (Nev. Dec. 18, 2013) (quoting Diamond Enterprises, Inc. v. Lau, 113 Nev. 1376, 1379, 951 P.2d 73, 74 (1997). This issue should be heard de novo because the issue at questions stems from the Court's Conclusion of Law regarding DVC's alleged failure to show by a preponderance of evidence they were damaged

by the breach and not an actual damage calculation. (Appendix Volume VII-Exhibit 14, Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, Page 11, JNT001172)

B. DVC Provided Clear Testimony Regarding Its Damages.

In this matter, the Parties' Contract states that if the Client terminates the contract before the work is completed, they shall be responsible for the profit the Contractor would have been made had the contract not been repudiated. INOSE provided testimony that he terminated DVC on or around December 8, 2015. (Appendix, Volume VII, Exhibit 14, Page 9, JNT001169).

Pursuant to Exhibit 274, the Job and Billing Detail, DVC's cost for the project was One Hundred, Twelve Thousand, Four Hundred, Fifty One Dollars and Eight Cents (\$1,012,451.08). (Appendix VII, Exhibit 13, JNT0001160). That means that at the time they were terminated DVC has spent One Hundred, Twelve Thousand, Four Hundred, Fifty-One Dollars and Eight Cents (\$1,012,451.08) on the project

DVC was paid approximately One Million, One Hundred, Twenty-Five Thousand, Seven Hundred Forty-Three Dollars and Seventy-Two Cents, (\$1,125,734.89) from INOSE. Both DVC and INOSE agreed upon this amount. During the testimony of Mr. Zachary, the following exchange occurred;

Q Okay. And so this -- Mr. Inose actually paid Desert Valley out approximately \$1,123,734.89. And I'm giving you that number, and I can go through all of the checks -- we did that in Exhibit 585 on one of the first days of trial with Mr. Inose.

MS. HURTIK: Do you want me to go through those, Your Honor?

THE COURT: \$1,123,000 and how much?

MS. HURTIK: \$734.89.

THE COURT: Now you don't need to. Unless you want to, but --

MS. HURTIK: No, no, no. I don't' want -- as long as -- MR. BOSCHEE: That's the number I had, too, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. MS. HURTIK: Okay

(Appendix-Volume VII, Exhibit 11, Trial Testimony Day 7, page 42-

43 Lines, JNT001162-63)

The owner of DVC is Dennis Zachary, who has over Thirty (30) years of experience in the construction industry. Mr. Zachary provided testimony that the Contract was to be performed on a "10 and 10" basis, meaning that DVC would earn an additional Twenty Percent (20%) over its costs on the project. The Twenty (20%) is comprised of Ten Percent (10%) to account for DVC's overhead and another Ten Percent (10%) to account for DVC 's profit. INOSE did not provide any counter evidence regarding DVC 's definition of costs and profit in a construction project.

The Twenty (20%) profit would be an additional Two Hundred, Two Thousand, Four Hundred Ninety Dollars and Twenty-One Cents (\$202,490.21). At a Twenty (20%) profit and overhead, DVC is entitled to a total of One Million, Two Hundred Fourteen Thousand, Nine Hundred Forty-One Dollars and Thirty Cents (\$1,214,941.30). DVC was paid at total of One Million, One Hundred, Twenty-Five Thousand, Seven Hundred Forty-Three Dollars and Seventy-Two Cents, (\$1,125,734.89).

Therefore, DVC has been damaged in the amount of approximately Eighty-Nine Thousand, One Hundred Ninety-Seven Dollars and Fifty-Eight cents (\$89,197.58) because of the termination of the contract by INOSE. Those loses stem from the termination of the Contract by INOSE. DVC was deprived of the profit they were not paid at the time Inose terminated the contract.

III. WHETHER THE DISTRICT COURT WAS IN ERROR WHEN THEY RULED THAT DESERT VALLEY CONTRACTING BREACHED THE CONTRACT

A Standard of Review

A district court's conclusions of law are reviewed de novo. White v. Cont'l Ins. Co., 119 Nev. 114, 116, 65 P.3d 1090, 1091 (2003). A district court's decision regarding the calculation of an award of damages will not be disturbed on appeal absent an abuse of discretion. *Gadbois v. Marathon Racing, Inc.*, No. 60167, 2013 WL 7156050, at *2 (Nev. Dec. 18, 2013) (quoting *Diamond Enterprises, Inc. v. Lau*, 113 Nev. 1376, 1379, 951 P.2d 73, 74 (1997). This issue should be heard de novo because the issues at question regarding DVC's alleged Breaches of the contract stem from the Court's Conclusion of Law. (Appendix Volume VII-Exhibit 14, Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, Page 14, JNT001175)

B. District Court is Inconsistent in Its Conclusions of Law.

In the District Court's Conclusions of Law on page 11, the Court found INOSE in breach of contract. However, according to the Court, DVC's cause of action failed because they did not prove its damages by a preponderance of the

evidence. (Appendix, Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, Volume VII, Exhibit 14, Page 9, JNT001169). There are no additional reasons for DVC's lack of success listed under this cause of action. However, under the Conclusions of Law for INOSE's Breach of Contract, the Court lists several reasons that DVC breached the contract (Appendix Volume VII-Exhibit 14, Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, Page 11, JNT001175).

C. DVC Performed the Work in Good and Workmanlike Manner.

The Conclusions of Law wrongly determined that DVC breached by not completing the work in good and workmanlike fashion, particularly by causing damage to the property unrelated to the restoration of the property. This renovation project was the result of a water leak. DVC was not the first company onsite. ServPro of Henderson was already on the scene removing property damaged by the water leak. INOSE himself could not testify as to each companies' role in the initial clean up.

Q So you arrive in Vegas and SERVPRO is out there. Do you meet them at the site?

A I met them at the house, correct.

Q Okay. And was it SERVPRO of Henderson?

A I -- I just know it was SERVPRO.

Q Okay. So at that juncture did that start -- did they have discussion with you and you have a contract that you signed with them to start general clean up?

A I don't remember any contract at this time that I signed; however, they were already starting clean up. I don't know if Rommel had signed the contract or I had signed the -- I don't know.

Q Okay. So once they had -- did they do all of the cleanup for the water intrusion?

A When you say "they" meaning SERVPRO? Q SERVPRO.

A SERVPRO, yes. SERVPRO, as far as I know, did all the cleanup. I don't know how much Desert Valley Contracting or Contractor did and how much SERVPRO did. I'm not 100 percent sure of that. (Appendix Volume I, Trial Testimony Day One, Page 11-12, Lines 24-16, JNT00009697)

Mr. INOSE has no idea what equipment or property was damaged by Servpro of Henderson in the initial remediation of the house versus any damage that was caused by DVC. Nor did INOSE distinguish anywork that was in poor or unworkmanlike condition at the time he terminated DVC. Finally, given INOSE the fact terminated DVC before the project was completed it would be impossible for them to do a final punchlist or construction cleaning for the project. This Conclusion of Law is not supported by the facts of the case and should be overruled.

D. DVC Did Not Breach the Contract by Failing to Complete the Scope of Work and Provide INOSE With A Fully Restored Property.

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